B. S. Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members,
Dish Infra Services Private Limited,

Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statement

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Dish Infra Services Private
Limited, (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended on that date, and Notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the State of Affairs of the Company as at 315t March 2025, its loss and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. AT
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our report:

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Impairment assessment Intangible assets
under development.

As detailed in Note 7 of the financial
statements, the Company Intangible assets
under development and Capital advances of
Rs. 6,050 lakhs (net of provision for
impairment of Rs. 21,538 lakhs in current

year).

In terms of Indian Accounting Standard 36,
“Impairment of Assets”, the management has
carried out an impairment analysis of
goodwill, tangible assets and intangible assets
under  development, which requires
significant estimations and judgement with
respect to inputs used and assumptions made
to prepare the forecasted financial
information, used to determine the fair value
of such intangibles, using discounted cash
flow model.

Considering the materiality of the amount
involved and significant degree of judgement
and subjectivity involved in the estimates and
assumptions used in determining the cash
flows used in the impairment evaluation, we
have determined impairment intangible

and intangible assets under development as a
key audit matter.

assets arising from the business combination

Our audit procedures to address this key
audit matter included, but were not limited
to the following:

a)

b)

We obtained an understanding from the
management through detailed
discussions  with respect to its
impairment assessment process,
assumptions used, and estimates made
by management and tested the operating
effectiveness of the controls
implemented by management.

We obtained the impairment analysis
carried out by the management and
reviewed the valuation report obtained
by management from an independent
valuer.

We  assessed the  professional
competence, objectivity and capabilities
of the independent expert considered by
the management for performing the
required valuations to estimate the
recoverable value of other tangible and
intangible assets, and Intangible assets
under development.

d) We involved our member/s within the

e)

audit team to assess the appropriateness
of the valuation model and
reasonableness of assumptions made by
the management in the above matter.

We evaluated the inputs used by the
management with respect to revenue
and cost growth trends, among others,
for reasonableness thereof.

We have evaluated the inputs used in the
analysis performed by the management
in respect of the key assumptions used in
revenue growth and costs, discount and
with historical trends and detailed
business plans to ensure that there




B S SHARMA & CO., DISH INFRA SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 2024-25
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
would be no major impact on the
valuation.

g) We have evaluated the adequacy of
disclosures made by the Company in
the financial statements in view of the
requirements as specified in the Indian
Accounting Standards.

Based on the audit procedures performed,
we  considered the  impairment
assessment made and the judgement and
estimate used by the management to be
reasonable.

4. Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors’ Report including
Annexures to such report but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our Auditor’s
Report thereon. The Board of Directors’ Report is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, and after reading the Board of Directors’ report, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance to that fact.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including total
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
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preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable uscr of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India vide notification no. S.O. 849 (E) dated 25th February 2020, further
amended vide its order dated 24th March 2020 and 17th December 2020 subsequently in terms
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company,
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31+ March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; the Company has not paid-or
provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly reporting under
section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

il

iv.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position except as otherwise stated in Annexure to Auditors’ Report and Note no. 48 of
Notes to Ind AS Financial statements hereto.

Provision has been made in these Ind AS financial statement as required under the
applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on long term contracts including
derivative contracts.

There has been no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Fducation and
Protection Fund, since the same is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; (Refer Note no. 53(iv) to the Ind AS financial
statements);

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belict, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been reccived by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“TFunding Partics”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;(Refer
Note no. 53(v) to the Ind AS financial statements)
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¢) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause iv (a) and iv (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the question
of commenting on whether dividend declared or paid is in accordance with Section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

For B S SHARMA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
FirnA Registration Number 128249W
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CA B S SHARMA
Partner \
Membership Number 031578
UDIN No.: 25031578 BMIOKY3692

Mumbai, 27.05.2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 7(1) under the heading of “Report On Other Legal And Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Dish Infra Services Private Limited, on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

We report, on the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order") issued by the Central
Government vide notification no. S.0 849 (E) dated 25th February 2020, further amended vide its order
dated 24th March 2020 and 17th December 2020 subsequently in terms of section 143(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) of Dish Infra Services Private Limited ('the Company'), as under:

(1) In respect of its Property, plant and equipment:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including Quantitative
details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment on the basis of available
information. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

b) The property, plant and equipment and right of use assets, other than consumer premise
equipment (CPE) installed at the customers’ premises, have been physically verified in a
phased manner by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the property, plant
and equipment other than CPEs installed at the customers’ premises, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. The existence of CPEs installed at the
customers’ premises is verified on the basis of the ‘active user status’. Accordingly, we are unable to
comment on the discrepancies, if any, that could have arisen or could arise on plysical verification of
CPEs lying with customers in ‘inactive status’.

¢) The Company has no immovable properties, hence the clause relating thereto of being in its
name, is not applicable.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible asscts during
the year.

e) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami lransactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii) Inventory:

a) The inventories, except goods in transit and lying with the third parties, have been physically
verified by the management, at reasonable intervals, during the year. In our opinion the
frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the nature of business and size
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(idi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

b) Based on the information and explanations given, and as verified, the Company has no
working capital limit sanctioned by any bank, hence reporting under this sub-clause is not
applicable.

Loans secured or unsecured granted:

Based on our verification of the books and records and as per information and explanations
provided to us by the management, the company has not granted, secured or unsecured, loans or
advances in the nature of loans to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs), or
other parties covered in the Registers maintained under section 189 of the Act, hence the
provisions in sub-clause iii (a), iii (b), iii (c) iii (d), iii (e) and iii (f) of clause 3 of the Order are not
applicable. :

Loan to directors and investment by the Company:

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us the Company
has not granted any, secured or unsecured, loans and/or made any investments and/or
provided any guarantees and/or securities, hence provisions of Section 185 and Section 186 of the
Order are not applicable.

Public Deposits:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not accepted deposits as covered under the provisions of sections 73 to 76 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable.

Cost Accounting Records

We have been informed by the management that the maintenance of cost records has not been
prescribed by the Central Government under section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the
services rendered by the Company. Hence reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

Statutory Compliance

In respect of statutory dues, according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the records of the company examined by us,

a. The Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
value added tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities, except for delays of a few days in some cases. There are no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Goods and Services Tax, value added tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, were in arrear as at 31st March, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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b. There are no dues relating to Income Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and other statutory ducs,
which have not been deposited as on 31 March 2025 on account of any disputes. The disputed
dues, relating to Value added tax, Custom duty and others, as submitted by the Management,
as detailed hereunder, whether deposited and/or partly deposited or not deposited are as

under: -
Period to which Amount ;
Name of the Nature of the amount Amount 4 Forun_1 whelc'le. paid under |
Statue Dues Relates (Rs. In ispute is pending | p.o oot (Rs. !
Lakhs) In Lakhs)
Andhra Value Added |
Pradesh Tax May-2015 to Sep- 444 84 High Court of 11121
Value Added | (Including 2016 ’ Andhra Pradesh L
Tax Act, 2005 Penalty) o
Bihar Entr Bihar Commercial !
cTax y Entry Tax FY2015-16 80.72 Taxes Tribunal, 80.72 |
Patna '
Value Added Commercial Tax , ﬁ,
Tax FY2007-08 15.09 Officer, Patna _1”4'60 4
Value Added ;
Tax Commercial Tax |
(Including FY2008-09 58.86 . 43.61 |
Officer, Patna ‘
Interest and :
Penalty)
Valu?ridded Bihar Commercial :
. FY2012-13 61.77 Taxes Tribunal, 270.13
(Including
Patna
Interest)
Bihar Value Vehicle Joint Commissioner
Added Tax Seizure FY2014-15 6.26 of Commercial 6.2n
Act, 2005 Taxes, Appeal, Patna
VaIu;;A;dded Bihar Commercial
. FY2016-17 166.03 Taxes Tribunal, 11547
(Including
Patna
Interest) o
Valuéfxdded Bihar Commercial
. FY2015-16 13.37 Taxes Tribunal, 13.37
(Including .
Patna :
Interest) S
Bihar Commercial :
Vatue Added | pyp015.16 275.63 Taxes Tribunal, 29063
Patna o
West Bengal Joint Commissioner !
& CST FY2015-16 1.72 of Commercial Taxes 0.lo !
VAT Act )
(Appeal) ;
Value Added . . !
West Beneal Tax Joint Commissioner '
5 : FY2015-16 49834 | of Commercial Taxes |  46.87 |
VAT Act (Including A : !
Interest) (Appeal) ) {:
Value Added !
Delhi Value Tax Spl. Commissioner - |
Added Tax (Including FY2009-10 168.60 1, Department of - |
Act, 2004 Interest and Trade & Taxes, Delhi

Penalty)
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Penalty)

Value Added Objection Hearing
Tax Authority Delhi
(Including FY2011-12 348.33 VAT, (Special -
. (Specia
Interest and Commissioner)
Penalty)
Value Added Objection Hearing
Tax Authority Delhi
(Including FY2013-14 579.76 VAT. (Special -
. (Specia
Interest and Commissioner)
Penalty)
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2015-16 (Q1) 111.13 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2015-16 (Q2) 117.55 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CS5T Special Objection
(Including FY2015-16 (Q3) 72.05 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2015-16 (Q4) 77.70 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CsT Special Objection
(Including FY2016-17 (Q1) 4481 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2016-17 (Q2) 35.71 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2016-17 (Q3) 16.00 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
csT Special Objection
{(Including FY2016-17 (Q4) 18.68 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
Valu?rAdded Special Objection
(Inchzll:ling FY2014-15 324.69 Hearing Authority, -
Delhi VAT
Interest)
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2015-16 (Q1) 78.64 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) ___ Delhi VAT
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2015-16 (Q2) 348.41 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CsT Special Objection
{(Including FY2015-16 (Q3) 60.89 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
CsT - .
(ncluding | FY2017-18(Q1) 1276 O:glet;t(‘)‘;?tylfga;l“ﬁig i
Interest)
CST Special Objection
(Including FY2015-16 (Q4) 51.97 Hearing Authority, -
Interest) Delhi VAT
Haryana ValutarAdded Jt. Excise & Taxation
Value Added (Inclzgin dated 15-12-2012 041 Commissioner 041
Tax Act-2003 & (Appeal), Haryana
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Haryana Value Added
Excise & Taxati
Value Added | B FY2015-16 178.16 Xe X aton i
Tax Act-2003 | U8 cpa
Interest)
Haryana Value Added
Exci T i
value Added x FY2017-18(Q1) | 4657 xcise & Taxation -
(Including Department
Tax Act-2003
Penalty)
The J&K
Entry Tax on State of Jammu &
Goods Act, Entry Tax 111.94 Kashmir 111.94
2000
Value Added
The Madhya Tax é‘;‘rﬁgﬁ; lepr“t%' .
Pradesh VAT | (Including FY2011-12 5.89 o T 147
Act, 2002 Interest and Indore ’
Penalty)
Value Added The Revisional
The Tripura Tax Authority, Office of
VAT Act, (Including FY2011-12 11.54 the Commissioner of 10.25
2004 Interest and Taxes, Agartala,
Penalty) Tripura
Value Added The Revisional
The Tripura Tax Authority, Office of
VAT Act, {(Including FY2012-13 22.54 the Commissioner of -
2004 Interest and Taxes, Agartala,
Penalty) Tripura
The Tripura Valuferg(dded Commissioner
VAT Act, . FY2015-16 0.25 Appeals, West 0.07
(Including .
2004 Tripura
Interest)
The Tripura Valufrfdded Commissioner
VAT Act, > FY2016-17 1591 Appeals, West 4.70
(Including .
2004 Tripura
Interest)
The Tripura Valu%f}.(dded Commissioner
VAT Act, . FY2017-18 5.59 Appeals, West 1.83
(Including .
2004 Tripura
Interest)
Telangana Value Added FY2015-16 to 127,63 High Court of 31.91
VAT Act Tax FY2017-18 (Q1) ) Telangana ’
Telangana ung‘;ﬁ%ue FY2015-16 to 5101 High Court of ]
VAT Act Added Tax FY2017-18 (Q1) Telangana
Rajasthan Entry tax FY2011-12 424.42 Tax Board Ajmer 12.06
Entry Tax :
Rajasthan Entry tax FY2012-13 315.32 Tax Board Ajmer 9.24
Entry Tax
E‘”Efsma“ Entry tax FY2013-14 251.54 Tax Board Ajmer 7.67
niry Tax
ga’afﬂm‘ Entry tax FY2014-15 757.01 Tax Board Ajmer 23.96
niry tax
fg‘zs;"m ACt | Custom Act 42,686.19 | High Court of Delhi ;
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The Assistant
Custom Act Commissioner of
19116520m ¢ Custom Act 230.15 Customs, Audit -
Commissionerate,
JNCH
Total 49,313.25 1,208.52

(viii) Proceedings under Tax Assessment & Income disclosed thereunder:

As per information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief, there
were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961). Hence this clause 3(viii) of order is not applicable.

(ix) Defaults in repayment of loans etc., from lenders:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
borrowed nor defaulted during the year in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender, hence this sub-clause is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has no loans or borrowings at the year end, since repaid in full, hence the
reporting on a willful default of repayment of dues of any bank or financial institution or
other lender, do not arise.

c¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loan/s during the year, hence the repayment and
utilization thereof by the Company for the purpose etc., is not applicable.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds were raised by the
Company on short term basis, except from the holding company in the nature of current
account transactions, as reported in Note no.20 to the financial statements, during the year.
However, during the year, no short-term funds were utilized for long-term purposes.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, the Company has no subsidiary, accordingly the
provisions of this clause relating to taking funds from any entity or person to meet the
obligation of its subsidiary or associate companies is not applicable.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, the Company has no subsidiary accordingly, the
provisions of this clause relating to raising loans on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or associate companies and default in repayment of such loans, is not applicable.
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(xi)

(xii)

Issue of Share Capital and Use of Amount raised:

a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

b)

(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company. .

Fraud Reporting:

a)

b)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

Nidhi Company - Compliance With Deposits:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Related Party Transactions:

(xiv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Note no. 44 to the Ind AS financial statements, as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

Internal Audit system:

a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for

the period under audit.
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(xv) Transaction with Director:

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act read with paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi) Registration with RBI

a) In our opinion and according to the information given, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting
under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) of
the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) Cash Losses:

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) Resignation of Statutory Auditors:

There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors occurred during the year.
Hence the clause 3 (xviii) relating to considering the issues, objections or concerns raised by the
outgoing auditors is not applicable.

(xix) Material uncertainty on meeting liabilities:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board
of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due, within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

(xx) Transfer to fund specified under Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013:

According to the information and explanations given to us, although the Company fulfilled the
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the
immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount
under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.




B S SHARMA & CO., ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DISH INFRA SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED, 2024-25

(xxi) Adverse remarks or qualification under CARO Report in Consolidated Financial
Statements:

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For B S SHARMA & CO.,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 128249W

CA B S SHARMA
Partner
Membership Number 031578
UDIN No.: 25031578 BMIOKY3692

Mumbai, 27.05.2025
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B. S. Sharma X Co.

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 7(1)(f) under of the Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Dish Infra Services Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DISH INFRA SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. .

1. MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“The guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the ‘accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

2. AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures on test basis to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

N

303, Level 3, Guruprabha CHS Ltd., 507-508 TPS IV, Sunder Nagar, Senapati Bapat Road, Dadar (W), Mumbai - 400 028.
@ : 022 - 40030929 / 24368252 / 66623197 X : bssharma@bssco.co.in, sbsharma@bssco.co.in % www.bssco.co.in
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3. MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

4. INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

5. OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were, checked on
test basis, considering size and nature of business, is operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI).

For BS SHARMA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 128249W

CA B S SHARMA
Partner

Membership Number 031578
UDIN No: 25031578BMIOKY3692

Mumbai, 27.05.2025



Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipments
Capital work-in-progress

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets

Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)
Income tax assets (net)

Other non current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total Equity

LIABILITIES

Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Other non current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of the financial statements (1-54)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For B. S. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 128249W

B. S. Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 031578

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 27 May 2025

Notes

~N N B

O oo

10
11

13
14
15
16
17

18
19

20
21
22

23
24

25
26
27

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

93,523 97,793
29,131 27,675
105 139
6,050 7,350
20 11
3,264 2,602
2,915 23,821
1,35,008 1,59,391
904 1,092

812 1,283
2,564 2,676
241 176

263 254
44,735 51,732
49,519 57,213
1,84,527 2,16,604
3,11,801 3,11,801
(2,87,483) (2,58,433)
24,318 53,368
1,26,152 1,10,467
98 144

- 80
1,26,250 1,10,691
- 8

27 100

7,191 10,700
4,626 15,006
22,008 26,607
107 124
33,959 52,545
1,84,527 2,16,604

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Sd/-
Mayank Talwar
Independent Director
DIN: 10864736

Sd/-
Manoj Dobhal

Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-
Balveer Singh
Company Secretary

Membership No. A59007

Place : Noida
Dated: 27 May 2025

Sd/-
Ravi Bhushan Puri
Non Executive Director
DIN: 06686381

Sd/-
Amit Kumar Verma
Chief Financial Officer



Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses

Purchases of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Operating expenses

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/(loss) before tax
Exceptional items
(Loss) before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax

(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of gains/(loss) on defined benefit plan
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (EPS) (face value Rs. 10)
Basic
Diluted

Notes

28
29

30
31
32
33
34
35

36

47
47

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of the financial statements (1-54)

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For B. S. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 128249W

B. S. Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 031578

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 27 May 2025

1,07,003 1,13,344
613 436
1,07,616 1,13,780
931 1,484
99 248
20,505 16,414
8,049 7,747
16,535 14,661
39,371 43,011
17,674 21,526
1,03,164 1,05,091
4,452 8,689
33,538 40,269
(29,086) (31,580)
- 60,503
(29,086) (92,083)
46 25
- (6)
46 19
(29,040) (92,064)
(0.93) (2.95)
(0.93) (2.95)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Sd/-
Mayank Talwar
Independent Director
DIN: 10864736

Sd/-
Manoj Dobhal
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-
Balveer Singh
Company Secretary
Membership No. A59007

Place : Noida
Dated: 27 May 2025

Sd/-
Ravi Bhushan Puri

Non Executive Director

DIN: 06686381

Sd/-
Amit Kumar Verma
Chief Financial Officer



Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 3,11,801
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,11,801
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3,11,801

B. Other equity

Reserves & Surplus | Other Components of [ Total other equity
) Equity (OCE)
Particulars Retained earnings | Equity contribution
from holding
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (3,59,626) 1,93,302 (1,66,324)
Profit for the year (92,083) - (92,083)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) 19 - 19
Total comprehensive income for the year (4,51,690) 1,93,302 (2,58,388)
Other Adjustments with holding company - (45) (45)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (4,51,690) 1,93,257 (2,58,433)
Profit for the year (29,086) - (29,086)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) 46 - 46
Total comprehensive income for the year (4,80,730) 1,93,257 (2,87,473)
Other Adjustments with holding company - (10) (10)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (4,80,730) 1,93,247 (2,87,483)
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of the financial statements (1-54)
This is the Statement Of Changes In Equity referred to in our report of even date
For B. S. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 128249W
Sd/- Sd/-
B. S. Sharma Mayank Talwar Ravi Bhushan Puri

Partner
Membership No. 031578

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 27 May 2025

Independent Director
DIN: 10864736

Sd/-
Manoj Dobhal
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-
Balveer Singh
Company Secretary

Membership No. A59007

Place : Noida
Dated: 27 May 2025

Non Executive Director
DIN: 06686381

Sd/-
Amit Kumar Verma
Chief Financial Officer




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

a)

b)

Background

Dish Infra Services Private Limited (‘Dish Infra’ or ‘the Company) (formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
was incorporated on 13 February 2014. The company is inter-alia engaged in the business of providing infrastructure and back end
support services to the Direct to Home (DTH) Service providers and their subscribers along with other ancillary services. Its
registered office is at Essel House, B-10 Lawrence Road, Industrial Area, Delhi-110035, India.

General Information and Statement Of Compliance With Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As)

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (‘“MCA”) under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, as amended and other provisions of the Act and the presentation and disclosure requirement of Division II of Schedule
IIT to the Act to the extent applicable. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorised and approved for issue by Board of Directors on 27
May 2025.

Significant accounting policies

Overall considerations

These financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarised

These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in these financial statements, except where the
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets, financial
liabilities, plan assets related to defined benefit obligation and share based payments which are measured at fair values as
explained in relevant accounting policies.

Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable as per the operating cycle of the
Company and other criteria set out in the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current
liabilities, as the case may be.



Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

d) Business combinations and goodwill

e)

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain
control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred, the
equity interests issued and fair value of contingent consideration issued. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as and when

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised either in profit or loss or as a change to OCI.

If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is measured as excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the resulting gain on bargain purchase is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the
gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at the cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use upto
the date when the assets are ready for use. Any trade discount, recoverable taxes and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Consumer premises equipment (CPE) are treated as part of capital work in progress till the time of activation thereof, post which
the same gets depreciated. Capital work in progress is valued at cost.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less depreciation and impairment loss. Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in
Schedule II, of the Act, as under:

Asset category Useful life (in years)
Plant and machinery 7.5

Office equipment except mobile 5

Mobiles 2.5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Computers

Laptops, desktops and other devices 3

Servers and networks 6

In case of Consumer Premise Equipments (CPE), life of the assets have been assessed based on technical advice taking into
account the nature, estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of assets, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes etc. and accordingly CPEs are depreciated over their useful life of five years, as estimated by management.



Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

g)

h)

i)

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the
respective asset is derecognised.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually identified and
separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Other Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. These assets are valued at cost which comprises the purchase price
and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

Cost of computer software includes license fees, cost of implementation and directly attributable system integration expenses.
These costs are capitalized as intangible assets in the year in which related software is implemented.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)

Software are amortised over an estimated life of one year to five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously
recognized are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. When estimating the cash flows, the
Company is required to consider —

i) All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
i1) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivables

The Company applies simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', which requires lifetime expected credit
losses to be recognised from the date of initial recognition of receivables.

Other financial assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has increased significantly, impairment loss is
provided.



Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

j) Inventories

)

ii)

Inventories of customer premises equipment (CPE) related accessories and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Digital Content:

Digital content i.e. web series, film rights, music rights (completed (commissioned/acquired) and under production) including
content in digital form are stated at lower of cost/unamortised cost or realisable value. Cost comprises acquisition/direct
production cost. Where the realisable value of media content is less than its carrying amount, the difference is expensed.
Programmes, film rights, music rights are expensed/amortised as under

a) Web series are amortised over three financial years starting from the year of first telecast/upload, as per management
estimate of future revenue potential.

b) Film rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the licensed period or sixty months from the commencement of rights,
whichever is shorter.

¢) Music rights are amortised over three financial years starting from the year of commencement of rights, as per management
estimate of future revenue potential.

d) Reality shows, chat shows, events, game shows, etc. are fully expensed on telecast/upload.

k) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable
consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. The Company applies
the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of the sales and services transaction as setout below, pursuant to Indian Accounting
Standard-115 "Revenue from contracts with customers" (Ind AS 115) which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised.

)

Revenue from rendering of services

- Revenue from subscription services is recognised over the subscription pack validity period. Revenue is recognised net of
taxes collected from the customer, collection charges and any discount given. Consideration received in advance for
subscription services is initially deferred and included in other liabilities.

- Lease rental is recognised as revenue as per the terms of the contract over the period of lease on a straight line basis.

- Activation fee is recognised on an upfront basis considering the level of services rendered on activation, the corresponding
cost incurred and separate consideration charged for the subsequent continuing services.

- Infrastructure support fees is recognised on the basis of fixed rate agreement on the basis of active customers over the
period when services are delivered.

Revenue from sale of goods
- Revenue from sale of stock-in-trade is recognised when the products are dispatched against orders to the customers in
accordance with the contract terms and the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards.

- Sales are stated net of rebates, trade discounts, sales returns and taxes on sales.

iii) Interest income

- Income from deployment of surplus funds is recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
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)

m)

n)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in
a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on such conversion and settlement at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded,
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs include interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs related to a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use is
worked out on the basis of actual utilization of funds out of project specific loans and/or other borrowings to the extent identifiable
with the qualifying asset and is capitalized with the cost of qualifying asset, using the effective interest method. All other
borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and loss.

In case of significant long-term loans, other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds are amortised over the period
of respective loan.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, pension fund, gratuity and compensated absences
Defined contribution plan
The Company deposits the contributions for provident fund and employees’ state insurance to the appropriate government
authorities and these contributions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which they relate.
Defined benefit plan
The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan
is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year by an independent actuary, using the projected unit
credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is
based on the market yields on Government Securities for relevant maturity. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

iii) Other long term employee benefits
Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences constitute other long-term employee benefits. The liability in respect of
compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary using the projected
unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii) Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus, etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the employee renders the related service.
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0)

p)

1))

Employee stock option scheme

The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan of the Company is recognised as an employee benefits
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received
are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.

Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset, (2) the Company has substantially all
of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (3) the Company has the right to direct the
use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a Right of use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements under which it is a lessee, except for short-term leases and low value leases. For short-term leases and
low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight -line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the useful life of the underlying asset

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. For leases under which
the rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information
available at the date of commencement of the lease in determining the present value of lease payments. Lease liabilities are re
measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. Rental income is recognized
on straight line basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with expected
inflationary costs.

Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earning/loss per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
Al nwenn
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r)

s)

t)

V)

W)

Equity, reserves and dividend payment

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Retained earnings include current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with
owners of the Company are recorded separately within equity.

Taxation
Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with relevant
tax regulations.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on
the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on
the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Unused tax credit such as (Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which
such credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying
amount of unused tax credit to the extent it is not reasonably certain that the Company will pay normal income-tax during the
specified period.

Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its normal operating
cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). Basis the review of operations being done by the CODM, the operations of the Company fall under Direct to Home
(‘DTH’) and teleport services, which is considered to be the only reportable segment.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, commitments and contingent assets

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is more likely than not that
there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle such obligations and the amount of such obligation
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are discounted to their present value (where time value of money is material) and are
determined based on the management’s estimation of the outflow required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management estimates.
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events, not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed for the present obligations that have arisen from past events in respect of which it is not
probable that there will be an outflow of resources or a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

When there is an obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is

PR

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is
disclosed.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value
through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is
described below.

Financial assets
Subsequent measurement
Financial asset at amortised cost — the financial instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(‘SPPT’) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method.
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS
27 Separate Financial Statements.

Investments in mutual funds

Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Derivative instruments — derivatives such as options and forwards are carried at fair value through profit and loss with fair
gains/losses recognised in profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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y) Fair value measurement

z)

The Company measures financial instruments such as investments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and in hand, cheques in hand and short term investments that are readily
convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value..

aa) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

ab) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on
the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting periods. Although these estimates are based
upon management’s knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates and revisions, if any,
are recognised in the current and future periods.

Significant management judgements

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the most
significant effect on the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the
probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets: The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires
assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.
Classification of leases: The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the leasing
arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer
of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option,
proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of
leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset. The Company has also factored in overall time period of rent
agreements to arrive at lease period to recognise rental income on straight line basis.

Contingent liabilities: At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However, the actual future
outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be different.

Impairment of financial assets: At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the
management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables.
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Impairment of goodwill: At each balance sheet date, goodwill is tested for impairment. The recoverable amount of cash
generating unit (CGU) is determined based on the higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. Key assumptions on which
the management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long-term growth rates, weighted average
cost of capital and estimated operating margins. The cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent the
management’s best estimate about future developments. Cash flow projections based on financial budgets are approved by
management.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO): Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these
assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements: Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets: Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable
assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software, customer relationships, IT equipment and other plant and
equipment.
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Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit/(loss) before tax after exceptional items
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss on sale/ discard of fixed assets and capital work-in-progress
Share based payment to employees

Financial guarantee expense

Impairment on financial assets

Exceptional items

Liabilities written back

Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)

Interest expense

Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
Decrease in inventories

Increase in trade receivables
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other assets
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payable
Decrease in provisions

Decrease in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes (paid)/refund

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including adjustment for creditor for property,

plant and equipment, work in progress and capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investments in bank deposits

Maturity of bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Repayments of long term borrowings

Repayment of short term borrowings(net)

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

(29,086) (31,580)
39,371 43,011
- 714
- (39)
15,685 13,737
783 45
33,538 40,269
(267) )
(194) 3)
846 891
(49) (62)
60,627 66,976
188 197
(312) 88
4) 66
(6,158) (7,032)
(3,582) 3,575
(63) (316)
(10,823) 3,210
39,873 66,764
(439) (1,477)
39,434 65,287
(38,713) (57,954)
51 21
(16,082) (199)
15,998 992
54 79
(38,692) (57,061)
(846) (891)
- (818)
® (6,424)
(854) (8,133)
(112) 93
2,676 2,583
2,564 2,676
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Cash and cash equivalents includes:
Balances with scheduled banks :
- in current accounts
Cash in hand
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

2,564

2,676

2,564

2,676

(a). The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS-7) on

“Statements of Cash Flows”
(b). Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

(c). Additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets include movements of capital work-in-progress, intangible assets under

development, capital advances and creditors for capital goods respectively during the year.

(d). Refer note 23.1 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities as set out in Ind AS-7

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of the financial statements (1-54)

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date
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Firm Registration No. 128249W
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4

Property, plant and equipments

Particulars Pla‘mt and Consun‘ler prermises Computers Office equipment Furniture and Vehicles Electrl‘cal Total
equipments equipments fixtures Installations

Gross carrying amount
As at 1 April 2023 144 7,79,566 636 294 104 - 3 7,80,747
Additions 1 57,691 64 4 1 - - 57,761
Disposal/ adjustments - - 30 - - - - 30
As at 31 March 2024 145 8,37,257 670 298 105 - 3 8,38,478
Additions 1 34,915 159 14 1 28 - 35,119
Disposal/ adjustments - - 81 0 - - - 82
As at 31 March 2025 146 8,72,172 748 312 106 28 3 8,73,515
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2023 59 6,87,033 464 172 33 - 2 6,87,763
Charge for the year 13 52,760 99 48 11 - - 52,931
Impairment for the year (refer note below) - - - - - - -
Disposal/ adjustments - - 9 - - - - 9
As at 31 March 2024 72 7,39,793 554 220 44 - 2 7,40,685
Charge for the year 14 39,184 90 37 10 2 0 39,337
Impairment for the year (refer note below) - - - - - - - -
Disposal/ adjustments - - 30 - - - - 30
As at 31 March 2025 86 7,78,977 614 257 54 2 2 7,79,992
Net block as at 31 March 2024 73 97,464 116 78 61 - 1 97,793
Net block as at 31 March 2025 60 93,195 134 55 52 26 1 93,523

('0' represent amount less than Rs. 50,000 rounded off to Rs. lacs)

Contractual obligation

Refer note 48 (c) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Capitalised borrowing cost

The borrowing cost has not been capitalised during the year 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note

Impairment testing of tangible assets and consequently the impact of impairment assessment as mentioned in said note on the D2H CGU, has been allocated to the tangible assets,accordingly an adjustment of Rs.

Nil (previous year Rs.10,100 lacs lacs) on account of impairment loss in the carrying value of consumer premises equipment belonging to D2H CGU has been made (refer note 5)
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5.1

5.2

Capital work in progress

Particulars Amount

Gross carrying amount

As at 1 April 2023 27,576
Additions 58,574
Disposal/adjustment (714)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (57,761)
As as 31 March 2024 27,675
Additions 38,475
Disposal/adjustment (1,900)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (35,119)
As at 31 March 2025 29,131

Ageing of Capital work-in progress
As at 31 March 2025
Capital work in progress Less than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 21,738 2,767 1,886 2,740 29,131
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
21,738 2,767 1,886 2,740 29,131
There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as at 31 March 2025
As at 31 March 2024
Capital work in progress Less than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 22,764 1,979 416 2,516 27,675
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
22,764 1,979 416 2,516 27,675
There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as at 31 March 2024
Goodwill
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 2,36,405 2,36,405
Impairment of Goodwill (2,36,405) (2,36,405)

Closing balance

Impairment testing is being performed at each balance sheet date. The recoverable amount of cash generating unit is determined based on the higher
of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. Value in use is determined basis cash flow projections which is being prepared taking in to account
past experience and represent the management’s best estimate about future developments. Cash flow projections based on financial budgets are
approved by management. Key assumptions on which the management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long-
term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. The impairment loss, if any, determined as a result of the
assessment is first applied to the carrying value of Goodwill allocated to D2H CGU and then to the other assets consisting in the CGU in accordance

with the manner prescribed in Ind AS 36.
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A summary of value in use and amount of impairment of D2h division during the financial year is given below,
D2h Infra CGU

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of discounted cash flows over 5 years 24,970
Present value of terminal cash flow 42,785
Total value in use 67,755
Less: Borrowing 51,898
Less: Net working capital -
Net recoverable amount 15,857
Less: Carrying value of PPE and other intangible at reporting date 25,957
Total provision for impairment (10,100)
Opening carrying value of Goodwill of D2h CGU -
Closing carrying value of Goodwill -
Provision for impairment customer and distributor relationship -
Provision for impairment property, plant and equipment (10,100)

Key assumptions used for value in use calculation are as fallows:

-The Company prepares its cash flow forecast based on the most recent financial budget approved by management with projected revenue growth
rate. Average Monthly Revenue per user is expected to grow at 2% per year.

-Terminal growth rate is assumed at 2% and is based on industry growth rate and projected growth of Indian economy.

-The EBIDTA margin is expected to be at the same level through out the projected period.

-The free cash flow arrived at were discounted to present value using WACC at the rate 13.00% (previous year 14%). The sum of the discounted
cash flows along with the discounted terminal value is the estimated Enterprise Value.
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7.1

Other intangible assets

Customer &
Particulars License fee Software Distributor Total
Relationship
Gross carrying amount
As at 1 April 2023 1,697 4,384 14,778 20,859
Additions 138 1 - 139
As at 31 March 2024 1,835 4,385 14,778 20,998
Additions - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 1,835 4,385 14,778 20,998
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2023 1,633 4,268 14,778 20,679
Charge for the year 80 100 - 180
As at 31 March 2024 1,713 4,368 14,778 20,859
Charge for the year 29 5 - 34
As at 31 March 2025 1,742 4,373 14,778 20,893
Net block as at 31 March 2024 122 17 - 139
Net block as at 31 March 2025 93 12 - 105

Contractual obligation
Refer note 48 (c) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets.

Intangible assets under development

In line with the business plan of investing in new age technologies, inter alia, Watcho the OTT platform, networking equipments and customer premises equipments (CPE),
the Company had made significant progress in augmenting these new age technologies in previous year. The Company had contracted with aggregators for content and
related infrastructure and recorded Rs. 6,050 lacs (Previous year Rs. 7,350 lacs) (net of impairment) as intangible assets under development and Rs. Nil ( Previous year Rs.
20,238 lacs) as related capital advances as of 31 March 2025.

The management of the Company with the help of independent valuation experts, assessed the probable future economic benefits from its Intangible assets under
development and capital advances pertaining to investment in new age technologies, inter alia, Watcho the OTT platform, and has consequently recorded Rs. 1,300 lacs
(previous year Rs.30,169 lacs) and Rs.20,238 lacs (previous year Rs. Nil ) as an impairment charge for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2025 in the values of Intangible
assets under development and capital advances respectively., which has been disclosed as an exceptional item.

A summary of value in use and amount of impairment during the financial year is given below,

Intangible assets under development

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Present value of discounted cash flows over 5 years (993) (3,781)
Present value of terminal cash flow 7,043 11,131
Total value in use 6,050 7,350
Net recoverable amount 6,050 7,350
Carrying value of Intangible assets under development and related advances 27,588 37,519
Total provision for impairment (21,538) (30,169)
Carrying value of Intangible assets under development 27,588 37,519
Closing carrying value of Intangible assets under development 6,050 7,350

Key assumptions used for value in use calculation are as fallows:

-The Company prepares its cash flow forecast based on the most recent financial budget approved by management with projected revenue growth rate. Average Monthly

Revenue per user is expected to grow at 2% per year.

-Terminal growth rate is assumed at 4.5% and is based on industry growth rate and projected growth of Indian economy.

-The EBIDTA margin is expected to be at the same level through out the projected period.

-The free cash flow arrived at were discounted to present value using WACC at the rate 22% (previous year 23%). The sum of the discounted cash flows along with the

discounted terminal value is the estimated Enterprise Value.

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025

Intangible assets under development Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of Total
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years
Projects in progress - - 19,955 65,864 85,819
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Intangible assets under development Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of Total
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years
Projects in progress - 85,819

Projects temporarily suspended

19,955

10,664

55,200
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Other financial assets (non-current)

Bank deposits with of more than 12 months maturity*
* Includes deposits under lien (refer note 50).
Deferred tax assets/liabilities (net)

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) arising on account of :

Provision for employee & others liabilities deductible on actual payment
Unabsorbed depreciation

Receivables, financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Deferred tax asset not recognised due to lack of reasonable certainty*

Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities for the year ended
31 March 2025

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:

Provision for employee & others liabilities deductible on actual payment
Unabsorbed depreciation

Receivables, financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Deferred tax asset not recognised due to lack of reasonable certainty*
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities for the year ended
31 March 2024

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:

Provision for employee & others liabilities deductible on actual payment
Unabsorbed depreciation

Receivables, financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Deferred tax asset not recognised due to lack of reasonable certainty*
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
20 11
20 11
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1,255
3,720

(29,917)
80,618

(55,676)

1,068
3,720

(33,865)
89,062

(59,985)

As at Recognised / reversed Recognised / As at
01 April 2024 through profit and loss reversed through 31 March 2025
OCI
1,068 187 - 1,255
3,720 - - 3,720
(33,865) 3,948 - (29,917)
89,062 (8,444) - 80,618
(59,985) 4,309 (55,676)
As at Recognised / reversed Recognised / As at
1 April 2023 through profit and loss reversed through 31 March 2024
OoC1
1,087 (13) (6) 1,068
1,439 2,281 - 3,720
(37,322) 3,457 - (33,865)
95,305 (6,243) - 89,062
- (59,985) - (59,985)
60,509 (60,503) (6) -

*As at 31 March 2024, the Company has re-assessed the availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, deferred
tax assets (net) recognised in prior years have been reversed in the absence of sufficient taxable income.

Income tax assets (net)

Income tax (net of provision and advance tax)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3,264 2,602
3,264 2,602
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11  Other non current assets

Capital advances (refer note 9)

Less: provision for doubtful advances

Less: provision for impairment

Advances other than capital advances:
Balance with government / statutory authorities

Prepaid expenses

12 Inventories

Stock-in trade (at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

33,645 34,407
(12,728) (12,728)
(20,238) -

2,152 2,142
84 -
2,915 23,821
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Customer premises equipment related accessories and spares 869 968
Digital Content 35 124
904 1,092
13 Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables - considered good, unsecured 812 1,283
Trade receivables - credit impaired 2,287 1,671
3,099 2,954
Less: allowances for expected credit loss (2,287) (1,671)
812 1,283
All amounts are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.
13.1 Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Particulars Outstanding from the date of transaction
Less than 6 | 6 months to | 1 to 2 years | 2 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
months 1 year
Trade receivables - considered 704 2 106 - - 812
good, unsecured
Undisputed trade receivables - 3 0 668 408 1,208 2,287
credit impaired
707 2 774 408 1,208 3,099
Allowances for expected credit loss (2,287)
812
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Outstanding from the date of transaction
Less than 6 | 6 months to | 1 to 2 years | 2 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
months 1 year
Trade receivables - considered 1,127 103 53 - - 1,283
good, unsecured
Undisputed trade receivables - 41 18 357 74 1,181 1,671
credit impaired
1,168 121 410 74 1,181 2,954
Allowances for expected credit loss (1,671)

1,283
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There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.

The credit period provided by the Company to its customers generally ranges from 60-90 days except subscription services wherein no such

credit period is provided as it based on prepaid model.

No trade or other receivables are due by directors and other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other

persons or amounts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

14 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:-
In current accounts

15  Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity less than 12 months*
* Includes deposits under lien (refer note 50).
16  Other financial assets (current)

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated*
Security deposits

Others
Income accrued but not due on fixed deposits
Insurance claim receivables

* The carrying value are considered to be reasonable approximation of fair value

17 Other current assets

Advances other than capital advances:

Advances against goods, services & others
Related parties
Others

Others
Balance with government / statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses
Unamortised borrowing costs

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

2,564 2,676
2,564 2,676
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
241 176
241 176
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

254 243
8 7
1 4
263 254

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

11,045 1,212
18,995 34,374
14,143 15,472
552 57
- 617
44,735 51,732
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19

Equity share capital

Authorised
3,120,000,000 (31 March 2024: 3,120,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up
3,118,010,000 (31 March 2024: 3,118,010,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up

Footnotes:
a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding

Shares at the beginning of the year
Add: Further issued during the year
Shares at the end of the year

b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at 31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

3,12,000 3,12,000

3,12,000 3,12,000

3,11,801 3,11,801

3,11,801 3,11,801
Nos Nos

3,11,80,10,000

3,11,80,10,000

3,11,80,10,000

3,11,80,10,000

As at 31 March 2024

Name of shareholder Number of shares % holding in Number of shares
the Company
Dish TV India Limited 3,11,80,10,000 100.00% 3,11,80,10,000 100.00%
c¢) Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Name of shareholder Number of shares % holding in the % Change Number of shares % holding in the % Change during
Company during the Company the year
year
Dish TV India Limited 3,11,80,10,000 100.00% 0.00% 3,11,80,10,000 100.00% 0.00%
Other equity As at As at

Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: loss for the year

Items of the other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
-Remeasurement of post employment benefits (net of taxes)
Balance at the end of the year

Equity contribution from Dish TV India Limited
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Received during the period
Balance at the end of the year

Nature and purpose :

Retained earnings

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(4,51,690) (3,59,626)
(29,086) (92,083)
(4,80,776) (4,51,709)
46 19
(4,80,730) (4,51,690)
1,93,257 1,93,302
(10) 45)
1,93,247 1,93,257
(2,87,483) (2,58,433)

All the profits made by the Company are transferred to the retained earnings from statement of profit and loss

Other component of equity
Equity contribution represents the corporate guarantee transaction with holding Company
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A)

21

22

23

Borrowings (non-current) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
From Others (Unsecured)
Long term borrowings from Holding Company 1,26,152 1,10,467
1,26,152 1,10,467

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings - -

1,26,152 1,10,467

Repayment terms, rate of interest and nature of security for the outstanding long term borrowing as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Borrowings from other

An amount of Rs 2,45,023 Lacs payable to Dish TV India Limited (holding Company) has been converted in to long term interest free Loan repayable on 31st
March 2030. In accordance with the guidance given in Ind AS 109, present value of the loan amount is Rs. 1,26,152 lacs shown under borrowing non-current and
the balance amount of Rs. 1,80,072 lacs is shown as equity contribution from Dish TV India Limited shown in note 19.

Provisions (non-current) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provisions for employee benefits
Leave encashment (refer note 38) 84 124
Gratuity (refer note 38) 14 20
98 144
Other non current liabilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue received in advance - 80
- 80
Borrowings (current) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

From banks (secured)
Cash credits - 8
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Cash credit

(i) The Company has taken cash credit facility of Rs. Nil (31 March 2024: Rs. 8 lacs) from Axis bank for general business purposes. The rate of interest is 3 month

MCLR+ 1.70%.

Above facility is secured by:

(a) 'First pari-passu charges on all movable and immovable fixed assets (both present and future);

(b) First pari-passu charges on all current assets including stock of raw materials, semi finished and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other
movable including book debts, bills, outstanding monies receivables (both present and future);

(c) Corporate guarantee is given by Dish TV India Limited.

23.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

24

24.

—

Particulars Borrowings Borrowings
(non-current) (current)

As at 1 April 2023 818 6,432
Cash flows:
Repayment of borrowings (818) (6,424)
Non-cash:

As at 31 March 2024 - 8

Cash flows:
Repayment of borrowings - ®)
Non-cash:

As at 31 March 2025 - -

Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 27 100
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,191 10,700
7,218 10,800

Dues to small and micro enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED') Act, 2006#:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each

. 27 100
accounting year;

ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act;

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a - -
deductible expenditure under section 23

# The management has identified micro and small enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) on the
basis of information made available by the supplier or vendors of the Company. Based on the information available with the Company, as at the year end, dues
towards micro and small Enterprises that are reportable under the MSMED Act, 2006 has been disclosed above.
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24.2 Trade Payables aging schedule
As at 31 March 2025

Particulars

Outstanding from the date of transaction

Unbilled Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Payable year
Total outstanding dues of MSME - 27 - - - 27
Total outstanding dues of creditors 2,223 4,626 58 119 165 7,191
other than MSME
Total disputed MSME - - - - - -
Total disputed other than MSME - - - - - -
2,223 4,653 58 119 165 7,218
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Qutstanding from the date of transaction
Unbilled Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Payable year
Total outstanding dues of MSME - 100 - - - 100
Total outstanding dues of creditors 1,067 9,534 29 1 69 10,700
other than MSME
Total disputed MSME - - - - - -
Total disputed other than MSME - - - - - -
1,067 9,634 29 1 69 10,800
25  Other financial liabilities (current)* As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advances from related parties - 7,366
Employee related liabilities 842 634
Capital creditors 2,340 5,520
Commission accrued 1,444 1,486
4,626 15,006
* The carrying values are considered to be reasonable approximation of fair values.
26  Other current liabilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue received in advance 9,293 11,583
Statutory dues 742 1,737
Advances/ deposits received 11,973 13,287
22,008 26,607
27  Provisions (current) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provisions for employee benefits
Leave encashment (refer note 38) 43 47
Gratuity (refer note 38) 64 77
107 124
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28 Revenue from operations

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Income from Direct to Home (DTH) subscribers:

-Subscription revenue 4,354 2,627
-Infra support services 99,919 1,05,961
-Lease rentals 14 57
Sales of customer premises equipment (CPE) and accessories 224 487
Advertisement income 1,147 2,037
Other operating income 1,345 2,175
1,07,003 1,13,344
Disclosure of revenue pursuant to Ind AS 115- Revenue from contract with customers
A. Reconciliation of revenue from rendering of service and sale of goods with the contracted price
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contracted Price 1,07,003 1,13,344
1,07,003 1,13,344
B. Disaggregation of revenue
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Revenue from operation*

Subscription revenue 4,354 2,627
Infra support services 99,919 1,05,961
Lease rentals 14 57
Sales of customer premises equipment (CPE) and accessories 224 487
Advertisement income 1,147 2,037
Operating revenue 1,05,658 1,11,169
Other operating revenue 1,345 2,175
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 1,07,003 1,13,344

*The Company has disaggregated the revenue from contracts with customers on the basis of nature of services. The Company believes that the
disaggregation of revenue on the basis of nature of services have no impact on the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash

flows.

C. Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Contract liabilities

Advance from customer(Income received in advance and other advance) 21,266 24,950
21,266 24,950
Receivables
Trade receivables 3,099 2,954
Less: allowances for expected credit loss (2,287) (1,671)
812 1,283

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance.
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29

30

31

32

33

D. Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Revenue recognised during the year

Closing balance

Other income

Interest income from:

- fixed deposits/ margin accounts
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Liabilities written back
Miscellaneous income

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade (CPE related accessories / spares)

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock

Operating expenses

Programming and other costs
Call center charges
Other operating expenses

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries

Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based payments to employees

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on:

-Term loans from banks

-Over draft

-Others
Expense for financial guarantee contract
Other borrowing costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
24,950 28,642
96,235 1,02,269
99,919 1,05,961
21,266 24,950
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

49 62
194 261
267 7
103 106
613 436
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
968 1,216
869 968
99 248
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6,771 3,519
10,861 9,826
2,873 3,069
20,505 16,414
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
7,456 7,170
420 417
- (39)
173 199
8,049 7,747
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- 13
- 34
846 844
15,685 13,737
4 33
16,535 14,661
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35

36

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation
Amortisation

Other expenses

Electricity charges
Rent
Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

- Consumer premises equipments

- Building

- Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Printing and stationary
Communication expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Service and hire charges
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Business promotion expenses
Commission
Provision for doubtful debts
Loss on sale/ discard of capital work-in-progress
Miscellaneous expenses

Exceptional items

Impairment of other advances ( refer note 11)
Impairment of property, plant and equipments

Impairment of Capital Advance ( refer note 7 & 11)
Impairment of intangible assets under development (refer note 7)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
39,337 42,831
34 180
39,371 43,011
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
202 177
788 1,005
10 14
1,347 1,605
10 6
38 69
54 79
2 16
472 434
34 45
1,724 1,526
1,302 1,430
350 993
3,306 3,554
4,180 4,024
2,743 5,150
783 45
- 714
329 640
17,674 21,526
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
12,000 -
- 10,100
20,238 -
1,300 30,169
33,538 40,269
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Group structure

Particulars Country of Percentage of
incorporation ownership

Name of the holding company

Dish TV India Limited India 100%

Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits”

Defined contribution plans

An amount of Rs. 396 lacs (previous year Rs. 394 lacs) and Rs. Nil (previous year Rs.0.03) for the year, have been recognized as expenses in respect of the
Company’s contributions to Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance Fund respectively, deposited with the government authorities and have been
included under “Employee benefits expenses”.

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. As per the plan, the Dish TV employees group gratuity
trust, administered and managed by the Trustees and funded primarily with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LICI) , make payment to vested employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The
Trustees are responsible for the overall governance of the plan and to act in accordance with the provisions of the trust deed and rules in the best interests of
the plan participants. Each year an Asset-Liability matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in
terms of risk and return profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this study. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are
determined by actuarial valuation as set out in Note 4(m) in significant accounting policies, based upon which, the Company makes contributions to the

Employees’ Gratuity Funds.

Risk exposure

The defined benefit plans are typically based on certain assumptions and expose company to various risk as follows:
a)  Salary risk- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase

the liability.

b) Investment risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last

valuation date can impact the liability.

¢) Discount rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
d)  Mortality — Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

e)  Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can

impact plan’s liability.

The following table sets forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and

Loss:
i)  Changes in present value of obligation

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Changes in present value of obligation

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 1,026 1,032
Interest cost 74 76
Current service cost 143 141
Benefits paid (224) (198)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation (46) (25)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 973 1,026

ii) Changes in fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year 928 934
Actual return on plan assets 62 58
Employer contribution 129 132
Benefits paid (224) (196)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 895 928
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iii) Major categories of plan assets :
The Company's plan assets primary comprise of qualifying insurance policies issued by life insurance corporation of India amounting to Rs. 895 lacs

(previous year Rs 928 lacs) for defined benefit obligation.

iv) Amount of provision recognised in Balance Sheet

Particulars As at 31 March 2025| As at 31 March 2024

Present value of obligation as at end of the year 973 1,026
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 895 928
Liability/provision in balance sheet 78 98
Current 64 77
Non-current 14 20

v)  Amount recognised in the Statement of profit and loss:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 143 141
Interest cost on benefit obligation 74 76
217 217

vi) Amount recognised in the Statement of other comprehensive income:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Expenses recognized in the Statement of other comprehensive income

Net actuarial loss/(gain) recognised in the year (46) (25)
(46) (25)
Bifurcation of actuarial Gain
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial loss arising from change in financial assumption 17 11
Actuarial gain arising from experience adjustment (63) (36)
vii) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Retirement age (years) 60 60
Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate (per annum) 10.00% 10.00%
Withdrawal rates
Age- Upto 30 years 20.00% 20.00%
31-44 years 12.50% 12.50%
Above 44 years 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 100% of IALM

(2012-14) (2012-14)

These assumptions were developed by the management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers.
Discount rate: The discount rate is estimated based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the

estimated term of the obligation.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, promotion and other relevant factors.
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viii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Year As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) 0tol 64 77
b) 1to2 82 86
c) 2t03 75 81
d) 3to4 68 72
e) 4t05 74 71
1) 5t06 59 69
2) 6 year onwards 551 570
ix) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation for significant actuarial assumptions
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 973 1,026
Decrease in liability due to increase of 0.50 % (38) (40)
Increase in liability due to decrease of 0.50 % 41 43
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 973 1,026
Increase in liability due to increase of 0.50 % 40 41
Decrease in liability due to decrease of 0.50 % (38) (39)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated.

x) The Company expects to contribute Rs.183.04 Lakhs (previous year - Rs.171.31 Lakhs) to the funded gratuity plans during the next financial year.

Other long term employment benefits

The liability towards compensated absence for the year ended 31 March 2025 base on the actuarial valuation carried out by using projected unit credit method

stood at Rs. 127 lacs (previous year Rs. 171 lacs).
The principal assumptions used in determining compensated absences are shown below:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Retirement age (years) 60 60
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 100% of IALM

(2012-14) (2012-14)
Ages
Withdrawal rates
Age- Upto 30 years 20.00% 20.00%
31-44 years 12.50% 12.50%
Above 44 years 8.00% 8.00%
Leave
Leave availment rate 3% 3%
Leave Lapse rate while in service Nil Nil
Leave Lapse rate on exit Nil Nil
Leave encashment rate while in service 5% 5%

39 Financial instruments measured at fair value
A. Fair value hierarchy

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are divided in to three levels of fair value hierarchy. The

three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active market is determined using valuation technique which maximise the use of

observable market data rely as low as possible on entity specific estimate.

Level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3
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B. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Particulars Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

Financial assets
Financial guarantee assets Level 3 - - - -
Other financial assets Level 3 20 20 11 11
Total financial assets 20 20 11 11
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Level 3 2,45,023 1,26,152 2,45,023 1,10,467
Other financial liability Level 3 - - - -
Total financial liabilities 2,45,023 1,26,152 2,45,023 1,10,467

The above disclosures are presented for non-current financial assets and liabilities. The carrying value of current financial assets and liabilities (security
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, financial guarantee contracts, trade payables and other financial liabilities)
represents the best estimate of fair value.

40 A. Financial instruments by category

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

FVOCI| FVTPL | Amortised | FYVOCI| FVTPL | Amortised Cost
Financial assets
Financial guarantee assets - - - - - -
Trade receivables - - 812 - - 1,283
Cash and cash equivalents - - 2,564 - - 2,676
Other financial assets - - 524 - - 441
Total financial assets - - 3,900 - - 4,400
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1,26,152 - - 1,10,475
Trade payables - - 7,218 - - 10,800
Other financial liabilities - - 4,626 - - 15,006
Total financial liabilities - - 1,37,996 - - 1,36,281

. Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to various risk in relation to financial instruments. The main types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The Company’s risk management is coordinated in close co-operation with the board of directors, and focuses on securing Company’s short to medium term

cash flows.

This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk and the related impact in these standalone

financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation to the company causing a financial loss. The
Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Credit risk management

Credit risk rating

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors
specific to the class of financial assets. The Company continuously monitors defaults of the counterparties and incorporates this information into its

credit risk controls.

A: Low credit risk

B: Moderate credit risk

C: High credit risk
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a)

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Asset group Basis of categorization Provision for expected credit loss

Investment, cash and cash equivalents, Loans, security
deposits, other bank balances and other financial assets

Low credit risk 12 month expected credit loss

Moderate credit risk Trade receivables Life time expected credit loss

Life time expected credit loss or fully provided
for

High credit risk Trade receivables

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make
payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering
differences between current and historical economic conditions.

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Investment, cash and cash equivalents, Loans, security deposits, 3,088 3,117
other bank balances and other financial assets

Low credit risk

Moderate credit risk Trade receivables 812 1,283

High credit risk Trade receivables 2,287 1,671

Credit risk from balances with banks, term deposits and investments is managed by Company’s finance department and are held with highly rated
banks.

The Company has given security deposits to vendors for rental deposits for office properties, securing services from them. The Company does not
expect any default from these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

Concentration of trade receivables
The Company has widespread customers and there is no concentration of trade receivables.

Expected credit losses

Provision for expected credit losses

The company recognises lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a simplified approach and uses historical information to arrive at loss
percentage relevant to each category of trade receivables.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables from individual customers:

As at 31 March 2025 Gross carrying amount | Weighted- average | Loss allowance

loss rate
0-90 days 696 0.29% 2
91-180 days 11 9.09% 1
181-365 days 2 0.00% -
1-2 years 774 86.30% 668
More than 2 years 1,616 100.00% 1,616
3,099 2,287

As at 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount

Weighted- average

Loss allowance

loss rate
0-90 days 565 2.30% 13
91-180 days 603 4.64% 28
181-365 days 121 14.88% 18
1-2 years 410 87.07% 357
More than 2 years 1,255 100.00% 1,255
2,954 1,671
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Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
As at 31 March 2025

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at losses impairment provision
default
Trade receivables 3,099 (2,287) 812

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at losses impairment provision
default
Trade receivables 2,954 (1,671) 1,283

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivable

Particulars

Carrying amount net of impairment
provision

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024
Changes in loss allowance
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025

(1,671)
(616)
(2,287)

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that suitable sources of funding for the Company’s business activities may not be available. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising
the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. Short term liquidity requirements comprises
mainly of trade payables and employee dues arising during normal course of business as on each balance sheet date. Long- term liquidity requirement is
assessed by the management on periodical basis and is managed through internal accruals and through funding commitments from shareholders.

¢) Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 2025 Less than 1 year 1 to S years Later than 5 years
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Borrowing - 1,26,152 -
Trade Payable 7,218 -
Other financial liabilities 4,626 - -
31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1 to S years Later than 5 years
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Borrowing 8 1,10,467 -
Trade Payable 10,800 - -
Other financial liabilities 15,006 - -
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d) Market Risk

i.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk exposure:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025
Currency type
EURO USD
Financial assets (A) - -
Trade payables 223 -
Other current financial liabilities - 145
Financial liabilities (B) 223 145
Net exposure (A-B) (223) (145)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Currency type
EURO USD
Financial assets (A) - -
Trade payables 247 -
Other current financial liabilities - 539
Financial liabilities (B) 247 539
Net exposure (A-B) (247) (539)

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and the
impact on other components of equity arises from foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow

hedges.

Particulars

31 March 2025

Impact on Profit/(Loss)

Currency type

EURO USD
Foreign exchange rate increased by 5% (11) (7)
Foreign exchange rate decreased by 5% 11 7
Particulars 31 March 2024
Impact on Profit/(Loss)
Currency type
EURO USD
Foreign exchange rate increased by 5% (12) (27)
Foreign exchange rate decreased by 5% 12 27
Interest rate risk
Liabilities
a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowings 1,26,152 1,10,475
Fixed rate borrowings - -
Total borrowings 1,26,152 1,10,475

b)  Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates

Particulars Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest rates — increase by 50 basis points (31 March 2025 50 bps) (631) (552)
Interest rates — decrease by 50 basis points (31 March 2025 50 bps) 631 552
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Assets

The Company's fixed deposits are carried at fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future

cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

iii. Price risk

The exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at

fair value through profit or loss.

Further the company is not exposed to any price risk as none of the equity securities held by the company are classified as fair value through profit

and loss or fair value through OCIL

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an

optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value.

As at 31 March, 2025, the Company has only one class of equity shares and has reasonable debt. The Company's net debt consists interest bearing
borrowings. Consequent to such capital structure, there are no externally imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital
structure, the Company allocates its capital for distribution as dividend or re-investment into business based on its long term financial plans.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Net debt 1,26,152 1,10,475
Total equity 24,318 53,368
Net debt to equity ratio 5.19 2.07
The company has not declared dividend in current year and previous year
Taxation
Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss
Deferred tax (including earlier years)

60,503

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year

60,503

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Profit before tax (29,086) (31,580)
Income-tax using company's domestic tax rate® 25.168% 25.168%
Expected tax expense (A) (7,320) (7,948)
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income-tax expense

Tax impact of expenses on account of permanent differences - -
Others 7,320 68,451
Total Adjustments (B) 7,320 68,451
Total Income tax expense - 60,503
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*Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as follows:

Basic tax rate 22.00% 22.00%

Surcharge (% of tax) 10.00% 10.00%

Cess (% of tax) 4.00% 4.00%

Applicable rate 25.168% 25.168%
43 Segmental information

The Company is in the business of providing Direct to Home (‘DTH’) and teleport services primarily in India. As the Company’s business activity primarily
falls within a single business and geographical segment, disclosures in terms of Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments” are not applicable.

44 Related party disclosures
a) Related parties where control exists: Holding Company
Dish TV India Limited

b

~

Other related parties with whom the Company had transactions:

Other related parties Dish TV employee group gratuity trust

¢) Transactions during the year with related parties:

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(i) With holding company
Revenue from operations and other income (net of taxes)
Dish TV India Limited 7,200 7,320

Purchase of services
Dish TV India Limited 2,160 2,253

Sale of property, plant and equipment
Dish TV India Limited (# Rs. 48,600) - #

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Dish TV India Limited 4 2

Reimbursement of expenses received
Dish TV India Limited 405 505

Amount collected on behalf of holding Company
Dish TV India Limited 1,90,182 2,38,252

Amount remitted out of collections made on behalf of holding company (Net)
Dish TV India Limited 1,97,760 2,14,408

Adjustment on account of assignment of payables
Dish TV India Limited 443 945

Corporate Guarantee Taken (Surrendered)
Dish TV India Limited - (2,28,981)

Expenses on account of financial guarantee contract and interest free loan
Dish TV India Limited 15,685 13,737

ESOP From Holding Company
Dish TV India Limited 10 39

Gratuity contribution during the year
Dish TV employees group gratuity trust 124 144
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d) Balances at the year end:

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

With Holding Company

Issue of equity shares

Dish TV India Limited 3,11,801 3,11,801

Equity portion of corporate guarantee received, interest free loan and share based payment

Dish TV India Limited 1,93,247 1,93,257

Loan received

Dish TV India Limited 1,26,152 1,10,467

Amount payable

Dish TV India Limited - 7,370

Amount Recoverable

Dish TV India Limited 11,056 -
45 Leases

a) Company as a lessee

b)

The Company has entered into lease arrangements for various offices and warehouse that are renewable on a periodic basis with approval of both lessor and
lessee.

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublet the asset to another party, the right of use asset
can only be used by the Company. These leases are cancellable operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the
lessee and the lessor. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings and
warehouses the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease.

The Company does not have any long term lease contract. Company only have short term lease contract for various offices and warehouses.

The Company has elected not to recognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases of expected term of 12 months or less) or for leases of low value assets.
Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis.

The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lease rental charges during the year 788 1,005

Group as a lessor
The Company has leased out assets by way of operating lease. The gross book value of such assets at the end of the year, their accumulated depreciation and
depreciation for the year are as given below:

Particulars As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross value of assets 2,11,216 2,11,216
Accumulated depreciation 2,11,216 2,11,216
Net block - -
Depreciation for the year - 7

The lease rental income recognised during the year in respect of non-cancellable operating leases and minimum obligations on long term non-cancellable
operating lease receivable as per the rentals stated in the agreements are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lease rental income recognised during the year 14 57
Particulars Total future minimum lease rentals receivable as
at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Within one year 3 14
Later than one year and not later than five years - 3
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46 Payment to auditor

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

As auditors

-Statutory audit and limited review of quarterly results 20 21

-Reimbursement of expenses 1 1

Total 21 22
47 Earnings per share

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (A) (29,086) (92,083)

Weighted-average number of equity shares (B) (nos) 3,11,80,10,000 3,11,80,10,000

Nominal value of equity share (in Rs.) 10 10

Basic & diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) (A/B) (0.93) (2.95)
48 Contingent liabilities, litigations and commitments

a) Claims against the Company (including unasserted claims) not acknowledged as debt:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt - 424

Customs duty 42,916 42916

Sales tax and Value added tax 6,397 8,271

b) Others

i)  The Company, has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses.
At the year end, the company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under the law/Ind AS for the material foreseeable losses on

such long term contract(including derivative contracts) has been made in the books of accounts.

ii)  During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has received a Show Cause Notice for Rs. 42,686 lacs from the office of the Directorate of Revenue
Intelligence (DRI), Bangalore, under section 108 of the Customs Act, 1962. The Company has preferred a writ petition for challenging the validity of
the show cause notice before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi. The writ petition has been maintained by the Hon’ble High Court and issued a notice to
the DRI Bangalore. The Company is confident that the proposed demand will not be sustained and therefore, no provision has been made in these

financial statements and the amount demanded has been shown as a contingent liability.

¢) Commitments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account

2,607

15,690

d) Others

The Company, has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the
year end, the company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under the law/Ind AS for the material foreseeable losses on such long

term contract(including derivative contracts) has been made in the books of accounts.
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Particulars of loans, guarantee or investment under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Company has provided following loans, guarantee or investment pursuant to section 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

Loan given

There are no outstanding, loan given by the Company.

Loans, Security or guarantee against loan

Nil

Investment

There are no investments by the Company.

50

Bank balances include:-

Particulars

As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Provided as security to Government authorities
Held as margin money for bank guarantees

5 22
256 154
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Ratios as per Schedule I1I requirements

Ratio Numerator Denominator Unit 31 March 2025 |31 March 2024 |% variance Reason for Variance
Current ratio|Current assets Current liabilities Times 1.46 1.09 34%|Increased due to decrease in
trade payable during the year
Debt- Equity | Total debt Shareholder’s Times 5.19 2.07 151%|Increased due to decrease in
ratio (refer note 1 Equity shareholder equity due to
below) impairment loss
Debt Service |Earnings for debt |Debt service Times - 0.72 -100%| The Company has repaid all
Coverage service = Net (refer note 3 the borrowings in earlier years,
ratio profit after taxes +|below) hence significant decline in
Non-cash debt service
operating
expenses
(refer note 2
below)
Return on Net profits after |Average shareholder’s(% (0.34) (0.93) -63% [Increased due to deccrease in
equity ratio |taxes — preference |equity loss during the year on account
dividend of impairment loss
Inventory Cost of goods sold|Average inventory Times NA NA NA
turnover
ratio
Trade Net credit sales = |Average trade Times 0.46 0.79 -42%|Variance due to decrease in
receivable gross credit sales - |receivable revenue related to this segment
turnover sales return
ratio
Trade Net credit Average trade Times NA NA NA [Not applicable for the business
payable purchases = gross [payables of the company
turnover credit purchases -
ratio purchase return
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Net capital |Net sales =total |Working capital = Times 6.88 24.28 -72%|Variance due to decrease in
turnover sales - sales return |Current assets — revenue related to this segment
ratio Current liabilities

Net profit Net profit Net sales = total sales {% (0.27) (0.81) -66% | Variance due to deferred tax
ratio sales return expense last year
Return on Earnings before  |Capital Employed % 0.14 0.14 -3%
Capital interest and taxes [(refer note 5 below)
Employed (refer note 4
below)
Return on Interest (Finance |[Average investment |% NA NA NA [There are no investment held
investment |Income) to earn returns

Notes:

1
2

3
4
5

Total debts consists of borrowings including interest and lease liability

Earning available for debt services=profit for the year + depreciation, amortization and impairment + finance cost + provision for doubtful debts + share
based payment to employees + exceptional items.

Debt service = Interest + payment for lease liabilities + principal repayments

Earnings before interest and taxes = profit before tax + finance cost - other income

Capital Employed = Average tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred tax

Schedule III require explanation where the change in the ratio is more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. Since there are seven instances where the
change is more than 25% hence explanation is given only for the said ratios.

The Company has used multiple accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31 March 2025, which have a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that no audit trail enabled at the database level for one of its accounting software to log any direct data
changes. The audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, we did not ome across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

Other statutory informations

1.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami

property.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Vi.

Vvii.

viii.

xi.
Xii.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The company has sanctioned working capital amounts from banks on the basis of security of fixed deposits. The quarterly returns being filed by
company with banks are in line with the books of accounts.

The company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium
thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or
previous year.

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under
Companies Act 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms of repayment.

Previous period's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current period's classification/disclosure.

This is the standalone summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date.
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